NATURE'SBASKET

Boards’ Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2017

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the 9™ Annual Report together with the Audited financial

Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017,

1. Financial Results and Performance Rs. in 000’

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
2016-2017 2015-2016

Total Income 3,099,053 2,691,639
Loss before tax (953,929) (621,944)
Loss after tax (953,697) (622,335)
Other Comprehensive Income (7,804) (932)
Balance brought forward from previous year (2,082,341) (1,459,074)
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet (3,043,842) (2,082,341)

1. Dividend
No Dividend was declared for the current financial year due to insufficient profit.

2. Review Of Operations And Future Outlook
Nature’s Basket continued on its growth path, much above industry standards. The sales
turnover for NBL in FY 2016-17 was 309.9 crores, delivering a growth of 15% YOY.

The Company during the year appointed Bain & Company to help define the long-term strategy
for the business. As a part of the strategy the management decided to exit out of the
underperforming market of Delhi and Hyderabad. Post the exit the Company has 26 operating
stores across 3 cities of Mumbai, Pune and Bangalore. As a part of the strategy, we have also
realigned our portfolio allowing to position ourselves to be “Daily Food Delight” stores on the
base of providing the “Freshest and Finest” food to our customers. This helps improve
frequency and loyalty of our customers. Overall revenue from loyal customers contribute
nearly 80% of overall revenue. The reorganization of the business as a part of the overall
strategy resulted in one-time write off/ spends aggregating to Rs 23.24 crores.

Our focus is to excel and be a leading Omni Channel player by focusing strongly on Instore as
well on line business channels in Daily Food Delight space. Currently our online sales stands
at 7% of our overall sales. We continue to improve our website and App experience through
regular updates and improvements.

During the year, the Company has set up a Supply Chain Function to improve overall
availability and inventory management, use of technology for improving in store processes,
which has also won innovation accolades.

NATURES BASKET LIMITED
Regd. Office : Godrej One, 3rd Floot, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli (East), Mumbai 400 079,
Tel. : +9122 2519 7788 Email : naturesbasket@godrejnb.com Website - www.naturesbasket.co.in
CIN : U15310MH2008PLC182816



The brand continues to win awards in forums like Food & Grocery forum, Franchise India
Retail Award for Omni Chanel performance, TRRAIN awards for Customer service etc.

- Material changes and commitment if any affecting the financial position of the company

occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate

and the date of the report

During the year there were following significant material changes and commitments between

the ends of financial year to the date on which the financial statement has been made:

1. Ms. Avani V. Davda was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company with effect
from 5% May, 2016.

2. Mr. Sumit Zaveri was appointed as the Chief F inancial Official of the Company with effect
from 9% March, 2017.

. Risks and Concerns

As we expand our physical reach both through offline as well as online expansion, we will be
exposed to an increasing degree of risks. These risks can adversely impact our operating
performance, cash flows, financial performance, management performance and overall
sustainability. We have an active risk management strategy in place and an Internal Audit
Committee, whose role is to identify potential risks, create mitigation strategies, monitor the
occurrence of risk and update the Board.
The risks that may affect us include, but are not limited to:

* Economic conditions.

* Inflationary pressures and other factors affecting demand for our products.

* Increasing costs of raw material, transport and storage.

® Supplier and distributor relationships and retention of distribution channels.

¢ Competitive market conditions and new entrants to the market.

* Labour shortages and attrition of key staff.

* Exchange rate fluctuation and arbitrage risk.

* Compliance & regulatory pressures including changes to tax laws.

® Seasonal fluctuations

. Risk Management

The risk management includes identifying types of risks and its assessment, risk handling and
monitoring and reporting. The Company has an Internal control System commensurate with
the size, scale and complexity of its operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence,
the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board.
The Internal Audit department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal
control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures
and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the report of internal audit function,
process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the



10,

11.

controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the
Audit Committee of the Board.

Policy to prevent Sexual Harassment at work place

Your Company is committed to creating and maintaining an atmosphere in which employees
can work together without fear of sexual harassment, exploitation or intimidation. As required
under the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 (Act’), your Company has constituted an Internal Complaints
Committee. The complaints received by the committee during the year under review were duly
resolved.

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives
The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility
initiatives as the said provisions are not applicable to the Company for the year under review.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees Or Investments
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Note no.17 to the Financial Statements,

Annual Return

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of
the Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in “Annexure A”
and is attached to this Report.

Related Party Transaction

All related party transactions that were entered into during the year were on an arm’s length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related
party transactions made by the company with the promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of
the Company at large.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also the Board for
approval. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. Attention of members
is also drawn to the disclosures of transactions with related parties set out in Note no. 41 of
Financial Statements, forming part of the Annual Report. None of the Directors has any
pecuniary relationship of transactions vis-3-vis the Company.

Directors

The Board on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee appointed
Ms. Avani V. Davda as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f, 5t
May, 2016. At the Annual General Meeting dated 9t May, 2016, the Members of the Company
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had approved the said appointment and terms of remuneration of Ms. Avani V. Davda as
Managing Director.

Mr. Sandeep Murthy was appointed as the Independent Director of the Company w.e.f 5. &
May, 2016. At the Annual General Meeting dated 9% May, 2016, the Members of the Company
had approved the said appointment of Mr. Sandeep Murthy as the Independent Director.

In accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Articles of
Association of the Company, Ms, Tanya Dubash shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment,

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet criteria of Independence as
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Sumit Zaveri has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer w.e.f from 9th March,
2017 as Mr. Shekhar Iyer, stepped down from the position of Chief Financial Officer, with
effect from 3rd March, 2017.

Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors, its Individual Members and its
committees

Your Company has conducted a formal Board Effectiveness Review as part of its efforts to
evaluate, identify improvements and thus enhance the effectiveness of the Board, its
Committees and Individual Directors, this was in line with the requirements mentioned in
Companies Act, 2013,

The Corporate HR team of Godrej Industries Limited and Associate Companies (GILAC)
worked directly with the Chairperson and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board, to design and execute this process which was adopted by the Board. Each Board
Member completed a confidential online questionnaire, providing vital feedback on how the
Board currently operates and how it might improve its effectiveness.

The survey comprises four sections and complied feedback and suggestions on:
* Board Processes (including Board Composition, strategic orientation and team
dynamics) ;
o Individual Committees ;
e Individual Board Members ; and
e The Chairman

The following reports were created, as part of evaluation:
e Board Feedback Report;
¢ Individual Board Member Feedback Report; and
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o Chairman’s Feedback Report

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board had
framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their
remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed
a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, senior management and their
Remuneration.

Your Company’s total rewards framework aims at holistically utilising elements such as fixed
and variable compensation, long-term incentives, benefits and perquisites and non-
compensation elements (career development, work life balance and recognition),

The rewards framework offers the flexibility to employees to customise different elements,
basis need. It is also integrated with your Company’s performance and talent management
processes and designed to ensure sharply differentiated rewards for the best performers.

The total compensation for a given position is influenced by three factors: position,
performance and potential.

Number of Board Meetings conducted during the year under Review
The Company had 8 Board meetings during the financial year under review.

The Company had held following meetings during the financial year under review:

Eight (8) Board meetings were held during the year on 5% May, 2016, 10t June, 2016, 12t
July, 2016, 5™ August, 2016, 9 November, 2016, 12t January, 2017, 2" February, 2017 and
g March, 2017.

Four (4) Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year on 5™ May, 2016, 5t August,
2016, 9™ November, 2016 and 2™ February, 2017.

Three (3) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held during the year under
review on 5% May, 2016, 204 February, 2017 and 8 March, 2017.



The composition of the Board and the details of the Directors participation at the Meetings is

e o

ACM - Audit Committee Meeting

NRCM — Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting
EGM - Exira Ordinary General Meeting

AGM — Annual General Meeting

16. Directors Responsibility Statement
To the best of the knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013:

That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any;

That such accounting policies as mentioned in the notes to the Financial statements have
been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company as at March 31, 2017 and of the profit/loss of the company for the year ended
on that date;

That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

That the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;
That proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively.

as under:
Sr. Date Board | ACM | NRC | EGM | AGM Directors / Members
No. Meeti M Ms. Ms. Mr. Mr.
ng 4 (2) Tanya | Avani | Sandeep | Sandeep
3) 3) Dubash | Davda | Barasia | Murthy -
1. 5™ May, 2016 v v v - - v v v
2. 9% May, 2016 - - - - v v v % v
3. 10" June, 2016 v - - - - v v x v
4, 12% July, 2016 v - - - - v v x v
sl 5™ August, 2016 v v v - v v v v
6. | 9% November, 2016 v v - - - v v v v
7. 12" January, 2017 v - - - - v v x v
8. 2" February, 2017 v v v v - v v v v
9. 8% March, 2017 v - v - - v - v v
Notes:




f. That systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in
place and were adequate and operating effectively,

17. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures And Associate Companies
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

18. Deposits
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

19, Disclosure Of Composition Of Audit Committee And Vigil Mechanism

The Audit Committee consists of the following member’s
a. Ms. Tanya A. Dubash, Chairperson
b. Mr. Sandeep Murthy, Member
¢. Mr. Sandeep Barasia, Member

The above composition of the Audit Committee consists of independent Directors viz., Mr.
Sandeep Murthy (from 5™ May, 2016) and Mr. Sandeep Barasia who form the majority.

20. Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy. The purpose of the policy is to allow
the employees to raise concerns about unacceptable improper practices and/or any unethical
practices being followed in the organization without necessarily informing their superiors. All
the employees shall be protected from any adverse action for reporting any unacceptable/
improper practice and/or any unethical practice or frauds or violation of any law, rule or
regulation so long as the employee. Apart from the employees, this policy will be applicable
to the Directors of the Company also. The Audit Committee reviews, the reporting’s made
under this policy and implements corrective actions, wherever necessary.

21. Auditors

Statutory Auditors

The term of current Statutory Auditors M/s. Kalyaniwalla & Mistry, Chartered Accountants
expires at the conclusion of Annual General Meeting for the financial year FY 16-17. In
accordance with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, M/s,
BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, have been appointed as statutory auditors
to hold office from the conclusion of this 9™ Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
the 14™ Annual General Meeting to be held in 2022 (subject to ratification of reappointment
by the members at every AGM held after this AGM) of the Company, on a remuneration as
may be agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Auditors.
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24.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed M/s Aabid & Co., a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as
“Annexure B”

Explanation Or Comments On Qualifications, Reservations Or Adverse Remarks Or
Disclaimers Made By the Auditors and the Practicing Company Secretary in their
Reports

The explanations /comments made by the Board relating to the qualifications, reservations or
adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report are furnished “Annexure C” and is
attached to this report. There was no adverse comments, qualifications or reservations or
adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit Report.

Share Capital

During the period under review, the Company obtained shareholders’ approval at the Annual
General Meeting held on 9" May, 2016 to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the
Company to Rs. 2,700,000,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred and Seventy Crore only) divided into
270,000,000(Twenty Seven Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each. Also at the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 5™ August, 2016 the Authorised share capital was
increased to Rs. 3,050,000,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred and Five Crore only) divided into
305,000,000 (Thirty Crore Fifty Lacs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.
Consequently at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 2°¢ February, 2017 the
Authorised share capital was increased to Rs. 4,000,000,000/- (Rupees Four Hundred Crore
only) divided into 400,000,000 (Forty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.
Your Company allotted 8,40,00,000 (Eight Crores Forty Lacs) Equity Shares to the entities
forming part of Promoter group during the financial year.

Rights Issue

Your Company had vide Offer Letter dated 5™ May, 2016 issued 9,000,000 (Ninety Lac)
Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each to the equity shareholders on a rights basis in the
ratio of 0.0399592 Equity Share for every 1(One) Equity Share held, to all such members of
the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company as holders of
the Equity Shares of the Company.

The Company vide Offer Letter dated 10™ June, 2016, issued 9,215,000 (Ninety Two Lac
Fifteen Thousand) Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each to the equity shareholders on
a rights basis in the ratio of 0.0393417 new Equity share for every 1 (one) Equity Share held,
to all such members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company as holders of the Equity Shares of the Company.



The Company vide Offer Letter dated 12™ July, 2016, issued 18,215,000 (One Crore Eighty
Two Lac Fifteen Thousand) Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each to the equity
shareholders on a rights basis in the ratio of 0.0748218 new Equity share for every 1 (one)
Equity Share held, to all such members of the Company whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company as holders of the Equity Shares of the Company.

The Company vide Offer Letter dated 16® September, 2016, issued 18,215,000 (One Crore
Eighty Two Lac Fifteen Thousand) Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each to the equity
shareholders on a rights basis in the ratio of 0.0696132 new Equity share for every 1 (one)
Equity Share held, to all such members of the Company whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company as holders of the Equity Shares of the Company.

The Company vide Offer Letter dated 9™ January, 2017 issued 18,215,000 (One Crore Eighty
Two Lac Fifteen Thousand) Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each to the equity
sharcholders on a rights basis in the ratio of 0.0650826 new Equity share for every 1 (one)
Equity Share held, to all such members of the Company whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company as holders of the Equity Shares of the Company.

The Company vide Offer Letter dated 10™ March, 2017 issued 11,140,000 (One Crore Eleven
Lac Forty Thousand) Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each to the equity shareholders
on a rights basis in the ratio of 0.0373713 new Equity share for every 1 (one) Equity Share
held, to all such members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members
of the Company as holders of the Equity Shares of the Company.

25, Particulars of Employees

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under
Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 (1) Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been appended in the Financial
Statements.

Details of employee remuneration as required under provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are available at the Registered Office of the Company
during working hours before 21 days of the Annual General Meeting and shall be made
available to any shareholder on request.

26. Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings And
Outgo
The information pertaining to conservation of emergy, technology absorption, Foreign
exchange Earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in “Annexure
D™ and is attached to this report.



27, Acknowledgements
Your Directors thank the various Central and State Government Departments, Organisations
for the continued help and co-operation extended by them. The Directors also gratefully
acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, members, dealers, vendors,
banks and other business partners for the excellent support received from them during the year.
The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees of the company for
their unstinted commitment and continued contribution to the Company.

28, Additional Information
The consolidated financial statements of the Company form a part of this Annual Report.
Accordingly, this Annual Report of your Company and other related documents shall be made
available for inspection during business hours at the Company’s registered office in Mumbai,
India.

“Annexure A” to this Report gives the Extract of Annual Return to be filed by the Company
under the Companies Act, 2013.

“Annexure B” to this Report contains the Secretarial Audit Report.

“Annexure C” to this Report contains the qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made
by the Statutory Auditors in their report.

“Annexure D” to this Report gives the information in respect of conservation of Energy,
Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo, required under Section 134
(2)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
forms a part of the Directors’ Report.

The notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore
do not call for any further explanation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\I‘M

Tanya A. Dubash Avani V. Davda
Chairperson Managing Director
DIN: 00026028 DIN: 07504739 Mumbai, May 11, 2017
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ANNEXURE - A
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31* March 2017

[Pursnant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

L

IIT.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN: - U15310MH2008PLC182816

ii) Registration Date: 29 May 2008

iif) Name of the Company: Natures Basket Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Public Company

v) Address of the registered office and contact details: Godrej One, 3rd Floor, Pirojshanagar, Eastern
Express Highway Vikhroli (East) Mumbai Maharashtra-400079

vi) Whether Listed Company: No
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent: N/A
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-

S1.No Eame and Description of Mainf NIC Code of the % to total turnover

roducts / Services Product/ service of the company
1. IN/A IN/A _ IN/A
2. IN/A IN/A IN/A
3. IN/A IN/A IN/A

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES —

Name and addres Holding/ (% of
SL.no. |of the company Subsidiary shares
CIN/GLN / associate ﬁleld IApplicable section

Godrej Industries‘L24241MH1988PLC0977 Section  2(46) off
8

i)
Limited i HOLDING|100% |- anies Act.2013



IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
a) Category wise Share Holding
%
Chan
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the-end of the year ge
year durin
Category of the
Shareholders g
year
De % of % of
. Total | De . Total
;r: Physical Total Share | mat Physical Total Share
s S
A, Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual | N/ | N/A ' .
/ HUF A N/A N/A | N/A [ N/A N/A N/A | N/A
b)  Central | N/ |10y N/A NA | N/A | N/A N/A NA | N/A
Govt A
c) State | N/
Govi.(s) A N/A N/A N/A | N/A | N/A N/A N/A | N/A
g)mp Bodies | o 225,230,000 | 225,230,000 | 100 |0 | 309,230,000 | 309.230,000 | 100 | 3720
e)Banks/FI [0 |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
DAny Other.. |0 | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
?X)b E;‘)}?l 0 | 225230,000 | 225,230,000 | 100 | 0 309,230,000 | 309,230,000 | 100 | 37.29
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs -
Individuals 0 |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other -
Individuals 0 |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
) Bodies|, |, 0 o (o o 0 0o o
Corp.
d) Banks/FI | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any
Other.... 0 (0 0 0 0 1] 0 0 0
Sub —total
0 |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
A) (2): -
Total
Shareholdin
g of
Promoter 0 | 225,230,000 | 225,230,000 | 100 | O 309,230,000 | 309,230,000 | 100 | 37.29
A) .
(A)D+A)2
)




B. Public shareholding

1.Institutions

a)  Mutual
funds

b)Banks/FI |0 |0

¢)  Central
Govt

d) State
Govt(s)

e) Venture
capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FlIs 0 |o

h)  Foreign
venture 0 1o
capital funds

i) Others
(Specify)

Sub-total

B)(1):- 0 |0

2.Non-Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i} Indian

0
0
ii) Overseas | 0
b)Individuals | 0

i) Individual
shareholding
nominal
share capital
up to Rs 1
lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding

nominal 0
share capital
In excess of |
Rs 1Lakh
capital

c) Others
(Specity)

Sub-total
B(2):-

ool <
ole|lo ©
ocl|lolo | o
ScClIoIoc| o
S|lo| o




Total Public
shareholdin
g B=|0 {0 0 0 0 0 0 0
@A)HB)2
)
C. Shares held by custodian for GDR's & ADR;s
Promoter and
Promoter 0 |0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Group
Public 0 |0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grand
Total(A+B+ | 0 | 225,230,000 | 225,230,000 | 100 309,230,000 | 309,230,000 | 100 | 37.29
\8))
b) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl. | Shareholde | Shareholding at the Share holding at the end
No. | rs Name beginning of the year of the year
No of shares | % of total | %of Noofshares | %  of | %of % change
Shares of | Shares total Shares in - share
the Pledged / Shares | Pledged/ | holding
company | encumbere of the | encumbere | during
dto compan | dto the year
total y total
shares shares
Godrej
1. | Industries | 225,230,000 { 100 N/A 309,230,000 | 100 N/A 37.29
limited
Total 225,230,000 | 100 N/A 309,230,000 | 100 N/A 37.29

¢) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl Shareholding at the Cumulative Share holding during the
No. beginning of the year year
: % of total
No. of shares shares of the | No. of shares :ﬁ’ of total shares of
e company
company
1. | At the beginning of | ¢ 554 599 100 100
the year
Date wise Increase / a. Allotted on 102 | 100 234,230,000 100
Decrease in June, 2016,
Promoters  Share 90,00,000
2. | holding during the Equity Shares
year specifying the on Rights basis
reasons for increase @Rs. 10 each
{ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /




bonus/ sweat equity b.
ete):

Allotted on 12%
July, 2016,
9,215,000
Equity Shares
on Rights basis
@Rs. 10 each

Allotted 5%
August, 2016,
18,215,000
Equity Shares
on Rights basis
@Rs. 10 each

Allotted on 9%
November,
2016,
18,215,000
Equity Shares
on Rights basis
@Rs. 10 each

Allotted on 2™
February,
2017,
18,215,000
Equity Shares
on Rights basis
@Rs. 10 each

Allotted on 30%
March, 2017,
11,140,000
Equity Shares
on Rights basis
@Rs. 10 each

100

100

100

100

100

243,445,000

261,660,000

279,875,000

298,090,000

309,230,000

100

100

100

100

100

At the End of the
year

309,230,000

100

d)} Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders

of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding at the Cumulative Share holding during
S1. No. B
beginning of the year the year
% of total
0 ¥
1. rem Dacyl otihe) fiop 10 No. of shares % ¢ toml shares No. of shares shares of the
Shareholders of the company
company
2, ?;arthe beginning of the | \;/\ N/A N/A N/A




Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus / sweat

equity etc)

N/A

N/A

‘N/A

N/A

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation, if

separated during the year)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

¢) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at the Cumulative Share holding during
S1. No. beginni
eginning of the year the year
' . % of total
0
1. For Each of the Directors No. of shares 7 of total shares No. of shares shares of the
and KMP of the company
company
2. ;:arthe beginning of the | \1/\ N/A N/A N/A
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying
3. the reasons for increase / | N/A N/A N/A N/A
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):
4. At the End of the year N/A N/A N/A N/A
INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans

excludin Unsecured Deposits Jotal
8 Loan P Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 472,653,531 52,000,000 - 524,653,531
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
1) Intersst acorued but not | » £33,656 10,411,385 | - 13,245,041
Total (i+ii+iii) 475,487,187 62,411,385 - 53789572
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
e Addition 0 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
* Reduction 105,080,526 52,000,000 - 157,080,526




Net Change (105,080,526) | 48,000,000 - (57,080,526)
Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount 367,574,007 100,000,000 - 467,574,007
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iif) Interest accrued but not due | 2,622,116 785,616 - 3,407,732
Total (i+ii+iii) 370,196,123 100785616 - 470,981,739

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SLNo | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD-
. Avani V. Total Amount
Mohit Khattar Davda
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the | 762,171 12,351,724 13,113,895
L Income-tax Act, 1961
. (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) | ... Nil .
Income-tax Act, 1961 il Nil
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under | \ (Nl Nil
section 17(3) Income tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option Nil Nil | Nit
3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil
4 COIIl.mISSIOIl - as % of profit - others, Nil Nil Nil
specify
5. Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil
Total (A) 762,171 12,351,724 13,113,895
Ceiling as per the Act In compliance with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013

B. Remuneration to other directors:

. . Sandeep  Kumar | Total

SLNo. | Particulars of Remuneration Sandeep Murthy Barasia Amount

Independent Directors

e Fee for attending board | 877,000 560,000 1,437,000
1 committee meetings

e Commission Nil Nil Nil

o Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil

Total (1) 877,000 560,000 1,437,000




Other Non-Executive Directors

* Fee .for attegdmg board Nil Nil | Nil
5 commiftee meetings

¢ Commission Nil Nil Nil

®  Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil

Total (2) Nil Nil Nil

Total (B) = (1+2) . 877,000 560,000 1,437,000
Ceiling as per the Act In compliance with the Companies Act 2013

C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Key Managerial Personnel
. Company Secretary - Sushma Shukia

SENo Partlculars. Gl CFO - Shekhar Iver & Sumit Zaveri Total

Remuneration Amount
CEO Company CFO
Secretary Shekhar Iyer | Sumit Zaveri

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per
provisions 690,648 5,665,077 3,062,197 7172325
contained in | Nil e
section 17(1) of
the  Income-tax
Act, 1961

1 (b) Value of

' perquisites s | . . Nil . .
17(2) Income-tax Nil Nil | Nil Nil
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu
of salary under | ... . Nil . .
section 173) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Income-tax  Act,
1961

2. | Stock Option Nil Nil 877,485 Nil Nil

3. Sweat Equity Nil Nitl Nil Nil Nil
Commission - as

4, % of profit -|Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
others, specify

5, | Others, please )\ |y Nil Nil Nil
specify
Total Nil | 690,648 6,542,562 3,062,197 7,172,325

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (Under the Companies Act)
: NONE



COMPANY SECRETARIES

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,

The Members,
Natures Basket Limited

We have conducted the Sectetarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Natures Basket
Limited (herein after called the company). Secretatial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing opinion thereon.

Based on our verifications of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms
and Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
reptesentatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby repott that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit petiod covering the Financial Year
ended on 31" March, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hercunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafter:

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company as given in Annexure I for the Financial

March, 2017 according to the provisions of:

y Mumbai Suburban Office:
8 Janmabhaomi Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 4, Jainika Apartment, Opp Malcolm Baug, Next to Dena Bank,

T: +91 22 40025464/22828661 M : +91 98921 58830 S. V. Road, Jogeshwari (West), Mumbai - 400 102
E : aabid@aacs.in | W : www.aacs.in T:+91 22 26793092 / +91 98336 48830 | E : jog@aacs.in
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) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Rules made there undet,

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made

thereunder.

@)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed

thereunder.

)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations
made thereunder is applicable to the extent of Foreign Ditect Investment,

Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings,

) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act")

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 ;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

¢ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009,

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999,

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008,




AABID & CO.

£} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrats to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

g The Secutities and Exchange Boatd of Indig (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009;

h)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Secutities) Regulations,
1998; and

1) The other Laws applicable specifically to the company is Annexed with this
Report as ANNEXURE- II.

"The Company is not listed on any Stock Exchange in India, therefore only clause (i)

and (iv) are applicable to the Company.

We have also examined Compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
() Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Company is not listed on any Stock Exchange of India; hence compliance

telated to Listing Agtreements is not applicable to the Company.

During the period under teview the Company has complied with the provisions of

the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Director and Woman
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Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were circulated at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and datification on the

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the. company
which commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and

ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines.

Place: Mumbai For Aabid & Co
Date: 11™May, 2017 Comppany Secretaries
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Note: This report is to be read with our lett_er of even date which is annexed as

‘Annexure-III’ and forms an integral part of this report.

ANNEXURE -1

List of documents vetified

1. Memorandum & Articles of Assodiation of the Company.

2. Annual Report for the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2017.

3. Mimutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee,
Nomination & Remuneration committee, along with Attendance Register held

duting the financial year under report.

4. Minutes of General Body Meetings held duting the financial year under report.

5. Agenda papets submitted to all the directors /members for the Board Meetings and

Committee meetings.

6. Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the

provisons of Section 184 of Companies Act, 2013.

7. E-forms filed by the company, from time to time, under applicable provisons of
the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013 and attachments thereof
during the financial year under report.

8. Intimations / documents/ teports / returns filed with the Stock Exchanges
pursuant to the provisons of Listing Agreement during the financial year under

report.

9, Statutory Registers viz,

===pa Register of Directors’& Key Managerial Personnet (KMP)
!// -3 Co b
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- Register of Members

- Register of Charges

ANNEXURE - 11
List of Applicable Laws to the Company

Registered Office :
Godtej One, 3td Floor, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway Vikhroli (East)
Mumbai , Maharashtra (India) 400079

Under the Major Group and Head ;

1) Companies Act, 2013

2) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

3) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

4) The Maharashtra Shops & Establishment Act, 1972

5) 'The Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948

6) Employee’s Compensation Act, 1923

7) The Maharashtra State Tax on Professions, Trades, Callings and Employments
Act, 1975

8) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

9) The Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

10) The Profession Tax Act, 1975.

11) Tourism Policy of Maharashtra,2006

12) The Food, Safety & Standard Act,2006

13) The Bombay Prohibition Act, 1949

14) Legal Metrology Act,2009

15) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
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17) Air ( Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

18) Envitonment Protection Act, 1986

19) Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling & Transboundry Movement)
Rules, 2008

20) Bombay Police Act, 1951

21) Entertainment Duty Act, Bombay 1923

22) Maharashtra Fire Prevention & Life Safety Measures Act, 2006

23) Income Tax Act, 1961

24) Relevant provisions of the Service Tax and Rules and Regulations thereunder.

25) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, Rules and Regulations made
thereunder.
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ANNEXURE-III

To,
The Members,
Natures Basket Limited.

Out repott of even date is to be read with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretatial records is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretatial

tecotds based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as wete approptiate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of Secretatial
records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts
ate reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,

we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records

and Books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever requited, we have obtained Management Representation about the

compliance laws, rules and regulations, and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination

was limited to the verification of procedures on a test basis.
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6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of

the Company nor of the efficacy ot effectiveness with which the management has

conducted the affairs of the Company.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NATURES BASKET LIMITED.

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of NATURES BASKET
LIMITED (*“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS Financial Statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the

LLP IN : AAH - 3437
REGISTERED OFFICE : KALPATARU HERITAGE, 127, MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, MUMBAI 400 oo
TEL.: {91) (22) 6158 7200 FAX : {g91) {22) 2267 3964
TAX OFFICE : ESPLANADE HOUSE, 29, HAZARIMAL SOMANI MARG, FORT, MUMBAI 400 0O}
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auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind
AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS Financial

Statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs(financial position) of
the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income ), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note No. 33 wherein the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis notwithstanding substantial erosion in net worth in view of further
infusion of the additional funds from its promoters/sharcholders.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

i.

iii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS Financial Statements — Refer Note 34 to the Ind AS
Financial Statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its Ind AS Financials
Statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. However, we are unable
to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to report on whether the
disclosures are in accordance with book of account maintained by the Company
and as produced to us by the Management — Refer Note 40.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No. 104607W / W100166

&ﬂv—i A Lt

Ermin K. Irani

Partner

Membership No.: 35646

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 11, 2017
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in in Para 1 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the Ind AS Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Statement on Matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016:

i

il.

iii.

iv.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets purchased after April 01, 2009,
In respect of fixed assets acquired/purchased prior to April 01, 2009, the register
is not complete in respect of particulars such as quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b)  As explained to us, the Company has a programme for physical verification of
fixed assets at periodic intervals. In our opinion, the period of verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets, The
discrepancies reported on such verification for assets purchased after April 01,
2009 are not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.
For assets acquired/purchased prior to April 01,2009 , in the absence of proper
details of assets the Company is unable to conduct a physical verification in
order to ascertain if there are material discrepancies in respect of such assets.

(c) The Company does not have immovable property and hence the provisions of sub
clause (c) of paragraph 3(i) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, physical
verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management
and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification and the same have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to companies and a firm covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act. There is no fix term of repayment of
principle and interest and hence the question of regular receipt of principle and interest
and any overdue amount does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the
records examined by us, the Company has not advanced any loans or made any
investments or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section
185 of the Act. The Company has given a loan within the limit specified by section 186
of the Act and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any Deposits from the public and hence the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder are not applicable.
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vi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company under the Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014.

vil.  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues in respect of above as on the last day of the financial
year for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records
examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise and Value added tax outstanding on account of any
dispute except:

3 In Thousand
Period to which
Sr. Nature of the amount Forum where dispute is
No. | Name of the Statute Dues Amount relates pending
Interest Commissioner of Income
1 Income Tax Act | U/S234B | 842,536 2012-13 Tax (Appeals) - Mumbai

viil. According to information and explanation given to us and based on examination of the
records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to
financial institution and banks. The Company does not have any dues to debenture
holders.

ix. The Company has not raised money through initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us and based on the documents and records examined by us on an
overall basis, the term loans obtained by the Company were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

x. During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the
Company, and according to the information and explanation given to us and
representations made by the Management, no material fraud by or on the Company by its
officers or employees, has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii.In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable.

xiil. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have
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been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

xv. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with the directors
or persons connected with him. Hence the provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not

applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 hence the provisions of paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order are not
applicable.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No. 104607W / W100166

Ermin K. Irani

Partner
Membership No.: 35646

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 11, 2017



KALYANIWALLA
& MISTRYLLP

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in Para 2 (f) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the Ind AS Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NATURES
BASKET LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethef
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. '
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No. 104607W / W100166

ﬁ'rn——;—- A L rorm
Ermin K. Irani

Partner
Membership No.: 35646

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 11, 2017



NATURES BASKET LIMITED
Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2017

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
No.
I Assets
(1) Non Current Assets
(a) Property Plant and Equipment 2 302,010 454,807 364,418
(b) Capital Work in Progress 2 16,682 . 16,400
(c) Goodwill 2 53,076 53,076 53,076
(d) Other Intangible Assets 2 13,617 16,820 20,030
(e) Financial Assets 3
(i) Invesiments 543 543 578
(ii} Loans 73,682 84,355 79,154
(iii) Other Financial Assets 5,614 4,815 3,991
(f) Other Non Current Assets 4 20,131 27,512 36,153
Total Non Current Assets 485,355 641,928 573,800
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 5 195,401 242,989 175,218
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 6 35,631 32,066 22,568
(ii) Cash And Cash Equivalents 7 200,400 129,999 138,157
(iiii) Bank Balances other than (ii) sbove 8 63 1,066 228
(iv) Loans 9 27,203 70,897 71,798
(v) Other Financial Assets 10 550 10,615 6,435
(¢ ) Current Taxes (Net) 11 8,721 6,402 6,401
(d) Other Current Assets 12 59,332 32,429 25,507
Total Current Assets 527,301 526,463 446,712
Total Assets 1,012,656 1,168,391 1,020,512
IL Equity And Liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 3,092,300 2,252,300 1,601,900
(b} Other Equity 14 (3,043,842) (2,082,341) (1,459,074)
Equity attributable te equity holders 48,458 169,959 142,826
Total Equity 48,458 169,959 142,826
(2} Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 263,322 367,573 342,431
(b) Long Term Provisions 16 4,113 1,571 1,087
Total Non Cuarrent Liabilities 267,435 369,144 343,518
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 17 100,000 52,000 52,000
(ii} Trade Payables 18 253,234 290,434 295,694
(iif} Other Current Financial Liabilities 19 319,276 272,549 175,702
(b) Other Current Liabilities 20 23,901 14,118 10,616
(c) Provisions 21 352 187 156
Total Current Liabilities 696,763 629,288 534,168
Total Equity And Liabllities 1,012,656 1,168,391 1,020,512

The Notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of the Financial Statements

Asg per our Report of even date

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration Number: 104607W/ W100166

Sd/-

ERMIN K. IRANI
PARTNER

Membership Number: 35646
Place: Mumbai

Dated: May 11, 2017

For and on behalf of the Beard

Sd- Sd/-
AVANI V. DAVDA TANYA A. DUBASH
Managing Director Chairperson

DIN: 07504739

Sd/-
SUMIT ZAVERI
Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. 104045

DIN: 00026028

Signatures to Balance Sheet and Notes to Financial Statements



NATURES BASKET LIMITED

Statement Of Profit And Loss For The Year Ended March 31, 2617

Rs. in Thousand
Particulars Note For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
No. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Revenue from Operations 22 3,035,670 2,667,129
Other Income 23 63,383 24,510
Total Income 3,099,053 2,691,639
Expenses
{1} Purchases of Traded Goods 24 2243 748 2,087,786
(2) (Increase)/ decrease in inventories of traded goods 25 47,588 (67,771)
(3) Employee Benefits Expense 26 286,174 259,914
(4) Finance Costs 27 76,399 50,113
(5) Depreciation And Amortization Expense 2 101,189 94,991
(6) Other Expenses 28 1,297,884 888,550
Totzal Expenses 4,052,982 3,313,583
{Loss) Before Tax (953,929) (621,944}
Tax Expense
(a) Deferred Tax - -
(b)Tax Adjustment 232 (3on
{Loss) For The Period {953,697) (622&
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on post employment benefits (7,804) (897)
Income tax effect F R
Net gain/ (loss) an FVTOCI Equity Securities - 35)
Income tax effect -
Total other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (7,804) (932)
Total comprehensive income for the year (961,501) (623,267
Eamings per Share from centinuing operation : (Basic/Diluted) in Rs. 29 (3.64) (3.22)
The Notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of the Financial Statements Signatures to Statement of Profit And Loss and Notes te Financial Statements
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Sd~- Sdr-
Firm Registration Number: 104607W/W100166 AVANI V. DAVDA TANYA A. DUBASH
Managing Director Chairperson
5d/- DIN: 07504735 DIN: 00026028
ERMIN K. IRANI
PARTNER Sd/-
Membership Number: 35646 SUMIT ZAVERI
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer

Dated: May 11, 2017

Membership No. 104045




NATURES BASKET LIMITED

Statement Of Changes in Equity For The Year Ended March 31, 2017

a. Equity Share Capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subseribed and fully paid

Balance As at April 1, 2015

Issue of share capital (Refer Note 13)
Balance As at March 31, 2016
Issue of share capital (Refer Note 13}
Balance As at March 31, 2017

b.Other Equity
For The Period Ended March 31, 2017

Asat April 1, 2016

Changes in Accounting Policy or prior period
errors ’

Restated balance as at April 1, 2016

Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

As at March 31,2017

For The Period Ended March 31, 2016

As at April 1, 2015

Changes in Accounting Policy or prior period
QITOrS

Restated balance as at April 1, 2015

Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

As at March 31,2016

No. in Thousands Rs. in Thousand
160,190 1,601,900

65,040 650,400

225,230 2,252 300

84,000 340,000

309,230 3,092,300

Rs. in Thousand

Reserves & Surplus Ttems of Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)
Re-measurement gaing/  Net gain/ (loss) on Fair ,
Retained earnings (losses) on post Value Through OCI: Total Equity
employment benefits Equity Securities
(2,081,962) (897) 518 (2,082,341)
(2,081,962) {(897) 518 (2,082,341)
(953,697) . - (953,697)
(7.804) - (7,804)
(953,697) (7,804) : - (961,501)
(3,035,659) (8,701) 518 (3,043,842)
Rs. in Thousand
Reserves & Surplus Items of Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)
Re-measurement gains/ . .
Retained earnings {losses) on post FVT?)eélga m!_(losss:col:-it. Total Equity
employment benefits Equity Securities
(1,455,627) 553 (1,459,074)
(1,459,627 553 (1,459,074)
(622,335) (622,335)
- (897) (35 (932)
(622,335) (897) 35) (623,267)
(2,081,962) {897) 518 {2,082,341)

The Notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number: 104607W/ W100166

Sd/-

ERMIN K. IRANI
PARTNER

Membership Number: 35646
Place; Mumbai

Dated: May 11, 2017

Signatures to Statement of Profit And Loss and Notes to Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd~
AVANIV.DAVDA TANYA A. DUBASH
Managing Director Chairperson
DIN: 07504739 DIN: 00026028

Sd/-
SUMIT ZAVERI
Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. 104045



NATURES BASKET LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2017
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

A, Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Loss Before Tax (953,929 (621,944}
Adjustments for:
Other Comprehensive Income (7.804) (932)
Depreciation 101,189 94,991
Loss On Sale Of Assets 121,154 10,490
Provision for Doubtful Advance 6,909 9,636
Interest Expenses 76,399 48,879
Prepaid Rent Amortization of Financial Instruments 20,275 6,909
Doubtful Advances written off 28 -
Bad Debts Written Off 74
Interest unwinded on Financial Instruments (20,959) (6,253)
Liabilities no longer required written back (2,795) (1,775)
Interest Income (34,592) {8,612)
Dividend Income 4) {4
259,800 153,403
Operating (L.oss) Before Working Capital Changes (694,129) (468,542)
Adjustments for:
Inventories 47,589 (67,772)
Trade Receivables (3,565) 9,171)
Short Term Loans, Other Financial Assets and Other Current Assets (30,152) {5,461)
Long Term Loans, Other Financial Assets & Other Non Current Assets 13,598 (21,913)
Trade Payables (37,200) (5,259)
Long Term Provisions 2,542 434
Short Term Provisions, Other Financial Liabilities & Other Current Liabilities 70,136 88,235
62,948 (20,857)
Cash Generated from Operations (631,181) {489,399)
Direct Taxes Paid (net of refimd received) (2,088) (391)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (633,270} (489,790)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (92,950) {162,385)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 3,126 228
Intercorporate Deposit Placed (770,000}
Recovery of Intercorporate Deposit Placed 822,000
Interest Received 45,103 3872
Fixed deposits Placed During the Period {296) (702)
Dividend Received 4 4
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 6,988 (158,983)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Proceeds from Issue of Capital 840,000 650,400
Proceeds from Long Term Bommowings (0 134,000
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (105,081) (99,301)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 600,000 -
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings (552,000}
Interest Paid (86,236) (44,484}
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 696,683 40,615
Net (decrease)/ increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 70,401 (8,158)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 129,999 138,157
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance) 200,400 129,999
Notes:

(a) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method™ as set out in Ind AS 7 on “Cash Flow Statements”, and presents cash
flows by operating, investing and financing activities.

(b) Figures in brackets are outflows/deductions.

(c) Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/restated wherever necessary to conform to this year's classification.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP For and on behalf of the Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number: 104607W/W100166

Sd/- Sd/- Sd~ Sd/-
ERMIN K. IRANI TANYA A. DUBASH AVANI V. DAVDA SUMIT ZAVERI
PARTNER Chairperson Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number: 35646 DIN: 00026028 DIN: 07504739 Membership No. 104045
Place: Mumbai

Dated: May 11, 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements
Note No. 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

() Company Overview

Natures Basket Limited ("the Company") is a Public Limited Company, which 15 domiciled in India and incorporated in the
Republic of India with its registered office at 3rd Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli (East) Mumbai - 400 079. The
Company is incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on May 29, 2008 . The Company is in the business of selling Premium
Gouwrmet products, Presently, the Company has 26 active stores and 2 Distribution Centres in Mahbarashtra & Bangalore. The
Company is a subsidiary of Godrej Industries Limited,

(2) Basis of Preparation
(i) Compliance with Ind As

(i)

(iii)

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) notified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) {(Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable.

The financial statements upto year ended March 31, 2016 were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian
GAAP") and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable.

These financial statements are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements and ate covered by Ind AS 101- First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition to Ind AS has been carried out from the accounting principles generally
accepted in India ("Indian GAAP") which is considered as the Previous GAAP' for purposes of Ind AS 101. An explanation of
how the transition to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and the Cash flow is provided
in Note No. 38 & 39.

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 were authorised for issuance in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors on May 11, 2017

Historical cost convention:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention basis, except for the following:
a) Certain financial assets and liabilities (including detivative instruments) that are measured at fair value;
b) Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

¢) Share-based payments - Cost; and

d) Assets Held for Sale - Measures at Fair Value less cost to sell

Functional and presentation currency:
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

(3) Key estimates and assumptions

While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, the management has made certain estimates and assumptions
that require subjective and complex judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the statement of financial position date
and the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting period. Future events rarely develop exactly as forecasted and
the best estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively.

Judgment, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

i) Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets
Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the
useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice, taking into account the
nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support,

if} Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of
the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities
ivolved in the valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting period.

iii} Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the funwe tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax
credits could be utilized,




iv) Recognition and measurement of other provisions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date, The actual outflow of resources at a
future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

v) Discounting of long-term financial assets / liabilities
All financial assets / liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition, In case of financial assets /
liabilities which are required to subsequently be messured at amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest
method.

vi) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an amangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Company separates payments and other
consideration required by the arrangement into those for the iease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative
fair values. If the Company concludes for a finance Iease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an
asset and a liability are recognized at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset; subsequently, the liability is
reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognized using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. And in case of operating lease, treat all payments under the arrangement as lease payments.

Rebates and sales incentives

Rebates are generally provided to customers as an incentive to sell the Company’s products. Rebates are based on purchases
made during the petiod by the customers. The Company determines the estimates of rebate accruals primarily based on the
contracts entered into with their customers and the information received for sales made by them.

vii

—

viii) Fair value of financial instruments
Detivatives are carried at fair value, Derivatives includes foreign currency forward contracts, commodity futuares and interest
rate swaps. Fair value of foreign cumrency forward contracts are determined using the fair value reports provided by
respective bankers. Fair value of interest ratc swaps are determined with respect to current market rate of interest.

(4) Measurement of Fair Values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for, both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities.
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management regularly
Teviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing
services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such
valnations should be classified.
When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial Hability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in 2 fair vaiue hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valvation
techniques as follows.

= Level I quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

" Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices inchuded in Level 1 that arc observable for the asset or lisbility, cither directly

(i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or Liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair
value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair valuc hierarchy as the lowest level itiput that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between Ievels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has occurred.

(5) Standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment:

In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs had made amendments to Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions under Ind AS 102. Paragraphs 19, 30-31, 33 and 52 of Ind AS 102 were amended and paragraphs
33A-33H, 59A-59B, 63D and B44A-B44C and their related headings were added. It mainly deals with accounting for a
modification of a share-based payment transaction that changes its classification from cash-setiled to equity settled,

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of amendments to Ind AS 102. As at the date of this report,
the Company’s management does not expect that the impact on the Company’s results of operations and financial position will be
material upon adoption of amendments to Ind AS 102.

{6) Accounting Policies
i) Property, Plant & Equipment
Items of property, plant & equipment have been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment




The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b} any cosis directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management.

c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation
for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period
for purposes other than to produce inventoties during that period.

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognised in profit or loss.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an ftem of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

If significant paris of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted and depreciated
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all if its property, plant and equipment as
recognized as at April 01, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the

property, plant and equipment.

if) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company.

iii} Depreciation / Amortisation
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided in accordance with the provisions of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, on
Straight Line Method. Depreciation on additions / deductions is calculated on pro rata basis. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. In case of the following category of property, plant and equipment, the depreciation has been
provided based on the technical specifications, external & intemal assessment, requirement of refurbishments and past experience
of the remaeining useful life which is different from the wseful life as specified in Schedule U to the Act:

Plant & Machinery 7.5 Years
Lease Hold Improvements Primary Lease and Secondary Lease Period

Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase/acquisition.

iv) Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Goodwill arising on business acquisition is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losscs.
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to
the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Other Intangible Assets which are acquired by the Company have finite useful lives and are measured at cost less accurnulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of intangible assets at 1¥* April 2015, the Company’s date of transition to ind AS, was determined with reference to its
carrying value at that date.

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful lives as given below:

Computer Software 6 Years
Website Platform 10 Years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

v) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for
its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expensc in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

vi) Impairment of Assets

Non-financial assets

The Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired at each Balance Sheet date and also
whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognized in the previous periods, If the carrying amount of
the assets exceed the estimaled recoverable amount, an impairment is recognized for such excess amount.

The recoverable amount is determined at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using appropriate discount rates that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

If the assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When there
is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which
no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.




vii} Investments
Ind AS 109 prescribes fair value measurement of all financial assets in the form of equity investrnents and all changes in the fair
value to be reported in equity.
Accordingly, the investments are fair valued and the impact of fair valuation of equity investinents would be reflected through
QcCl,

viii) Inventories
Stock in Trade is valued at weighted average cost or market value, whichever is lower. Packing Material is treated as consumed
on purchase.
The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases and other related costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to the present location and condition. Slow and non-moving material, obsolescence, defective inventories are duly
provided for and valued at net realizable value.

ix) Provisions and Contingent Liabilitics
Provisions are recognized in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations the amount of which can be reliably
estimated.
Contingent liabilitics are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence is confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occmrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

x) Revenue Recognition
a) Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership in
the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of contracts and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount
of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods.

b) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised only when the right to receive the same is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

¢) Interest income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest incorne is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR),
which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instruments or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asscts. Interest income is
included in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

xi) Loyalty Program
Sales is allocated between the loyalty programme and the other components of the transaction, The amount allocated to the loyalty
programmeg is deferred, and is recognised as revenue when the Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the discounted
products under the terms of the programme or when it is no longer probable that the points under the programme will be
redeemed.

xii) Share Based payment
Employees are given stock optien plans of the Uhtimate Holding Company. The cost of stock option plans is calculated using
Black & Scholes option pricing model. The cost calculated using this method is recognized as an employee benefit expense over
the vesting period of the options, which is four years.

xiii} Retirement & Other Employee Benefiss
(i} Short Term Employee Benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided, A liability is recognised for the
amount expected 1o be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. The Company has a scheme of
Performance Linked Variable Remuneration (PLVR) which rewards its employees based on either Economic Value Added
(EVA) or Profit before tax (PBT). The PLVR amount is related to actual improvement made in cither EVA or PBT over the
previous year when compared with expected improvements.

Short-term benefits such as salarics, wages, shori-term compensation absences, etc., are determined on an undiscounted basis
and recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Post Employment Benefits:

Defined Contribution Plans; The Company's contributions paid/payable to Regional Provident Fund, Super Annuation Fund,
Employees State Insurance Scheme, Employees Pension Schemes, 1995 and other funds, are determined under the relevant
approved schemes and/or statutes and ate recognised as expensc in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service. There are no further obligations other than the contributions payable to the
approved trusts/appropriate authorities.

Defined Benefit Plans: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees.
The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the Company. The
calculation of defined benefit obligations is petformed anmally by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits aveilable in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.



(iti) Other long term employee benefits:
Liability towards Long-term Compensated Absences are determined based on actuarial valuation by independent actuaries as
at the date of the Balance Sheet using Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains/losses comprising of experience
adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit &
Loss of the year.

(iv) Tenninal Benefits:
All terminal benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

xiv) Earnings Per Share
The basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted carnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares
outstanding during the period, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

xv) Foreign currency transactions

Items inctuded in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary conomic environment
in which the entity operates {“the functional currency’) The Indian Rupee (INR) is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate,
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company's
monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as income and expenses in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of transactions. Non-moneiary items that are measured at fair value in a foreipn currency shall be translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

The gains or losses resulting from translations of monetary assets and liabilities are included in net profit in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

xvi) Taxes on Income:
Income Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income Tax expense is recognized in net profit in the Statement of
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it recognised in other
comprehensive income.
i) Current Tax
Current Tax is the amount of income taxes payable {(recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for the year
determined n accordance with the provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961, Current income tax for current and prior periods
is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rate and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
Current tax assets and Liabilities are offset if, and only if, the Company:
a) has a legally enfarceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and
b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,
ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax i recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes,

Deferred tax liability is not recognized for the following taxable temporary differences:

a} on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

b} initial recognition of goodw ill,

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of fiture taxable profits improves. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

The measuwrement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its asscts and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax Habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the
same taxable entity.

xvii) Lease
In determining whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the
lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right o use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in the arrangement.

Finance Lease

Agreements are classified as finance leases (including those for land), if substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the lessee.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at fair value of the lease property or at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, whichever is lower. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and a reduction in the
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized
in finance costs in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.




QOperating Lease

Agreements (including those for land) which are not classified as finance leases are considered as operating lease (where a
significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor). Payments made under operating leases are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense,
over the term of the lease.

xviii} Financial instruments
A financial instrument i any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 2 financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward
contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract,

Finaneial instruments also covers contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item that can be settled net in cash or another financial
instrument, or by exchanging financial instruments, as if the contracts were financial instruments, with the exception of contracts
that were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with
the entity’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements.

Detivatives are currently recognized at fair vahue on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair valoe at the end of cach reporting period.

i) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair valie through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured
at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial nssets are classified in two broad categories:
+ Financial assets at fair value

* Financial assets at amortized cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(ie. fair value through profit or loss), or recogmized in Other Comprehensive Income (ie. fair value through other
comprehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost (net of any write down for
impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

* Business model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the
contractua] cash flows (rather than to sell the instrament prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes).

* Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measuted at fair value through other comprehensive income
unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

* Business model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets.

* Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Even if om instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recogunition mconsistency (sometimes refetred fo as an ‘accounting mismatch’) that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liahilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss, except for those equity investments for which the entity has elected to present value changes in ‘other
comprehensive income’.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition fo measure it at fair value
through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either;

(2) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred conirol of the asset, the
Company continues 1o recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transforred assei and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights end obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.




Impairment of Financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost ¢.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and
bank balance.

b) Trade receivables - The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. Trade receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after considering the sanctioned credit limits,
security like letters of credit, security deposit collected etc. and expectations about future cash flows.

ii) Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking inte account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that ar an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivarive financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instrurnents in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilitics held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initfal date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied,

Loans and borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gaing and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amottization process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amottization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantizally different terms, or the terms of an
existing linbility are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

xiy) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enfrcenble fegal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an miention to settle on a net hasis, o realise the assets and
settle the liabilitics simultaneously.

xx) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent i the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Fer the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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Rs. in Th d

Note Particulars March 31,2017  March 31,2016  April 1, 2015
No.
3 Financial Assets - Non Current
(i) Investmenis
Unquoted Equity Shares (at Falr Value)
2,500 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid (March 31, 2016: 2,500; Apsil 1, 2015: 2,500) in 543 543 578
The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited
Total 543 543 578
Note No.3.1 :

Due to non availability of Sufficient information, the Company has not done fair valuation of Investinents in the current year, The Company has carried forward
previous years fair valued amount.

(i) Loans
Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated
(a) Security Deposits

Considered Good 73,601 84,124 78,865
Congidered Doubtful 6,247 5,947 -
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances {6.247) (5.947) -
73,601 34,124 78,865
(b) Employee Loans & Advances
Considered Good 81 231 289
Considered Doubtful 3,158 2,377 2,188
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances (3,158) (2,377) (2,188)
81 231 289
Total __ 73682 84,355 79,154
(iii) Other Financial Assets
(a) Long Tern Deposits with Bank with maturity period more than 12 months (Refer Note 3.2) 4393 3,003 3,220
{b) Non Trade Receivables 6,846
Less: Provision for doubtfil debts (6,846) -
(¢} NSC Pledged with Government Authorities 1,221 1,722 T62
Total 5,614 4,815 3,991
Note No3.2:

Fixed Deposits valuing Rs. 400 Thousand, (Previous Year Rs. 1,489 Thousand; Aprit 1,2015 Rs 3,078 Thousand) are pledged with the Bank for guarantecs issued.

Other Non Current Assets
(i) Capital Advances
Considersd Good 1,294 . 14,102
Considered Doubtful 3,500 3.500
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances {3,500} (3,500} -
1,294 - 14,102
(ii) Prepaid Expenses 18,837 27,512 22,051
Taotal 20,131 27,512 36,153
Inventories
Stock in Trade (at cost) 195,401 242 989 175,218
Total 195401 242,989 175,218
Financial Assets - Current
Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered Good 35,631 32,066 22,968

Total 35,631 32,066 22,968




Rs.in Th d

Note Particulars March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015
No.
7  Cash And Cash Equivalents

10

11

12

(i) Balances With Banks in Current Accounts
{ii) Cash on Hand

Total

Bank Balances other than (7} above
Deposits with matwrity more than 3 menths but less than 12 months {Refer Note 3.2)

Total

Loans
Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated
(a) Security Deposits
(b} Inter Corporate Deposits
(c) Empleyee Loans & Advances

Total

Other Financial Assets

(8) Interest Accrued but not due on ICD

(b) Receivable from Related Parties

{c) Other Receivables

(d) NSC Pledged with Governnent Authority
Total

Current Tax (Net)
Advance Payment of Taxes {Net of provision for Tax)
Total

Other Current Assets
Unsecured, Considered Good
Other Loans And Advances
{a) Prepaid Expenses
(b) Balances with Government Authorities
(€) Advances to Vendors / Service Providers
{d) Non Current Assets held for Sale
(e) Others

Total

194816 123,001 132,516
5,584 6.998 5,641
200,400 129,999 138,157
63 1,066 228
63 1.066 228
63 1,066 228
26,963 18221 19,097
- 52,000 52,000
240 676 701
27,203 70,897 71,798
10,512 5773
i - 662
49 103 _
501 . B
550 10,615 6,435
8,721 6,402 6,401
8,721 6402 BAUL
11524 15378 10,891
25 4,179
42,301 17,016 10,436
5,504
3 10 i
59332 32,429 25,507




Rs, in Thousand

Note
No.

Particulars March 31,2017

March 31,2016  April 1, 2015

)

14

15

Share Capital
(i) Authorised Share Capital
(a) 400,000,000 {Previous Year 235,000,000; As on April 1, 2015 165,000.000) Equity Shares of 4.000,000
Rs_ 10/~ each

(ii) Issued, Subseribed And Paid-up Share Capital
(a) 309,230,000 (Previous Year 225,230,000; As on April 1, 2015 160,190,000) Equity Shares of 3,092,300
Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Total 3,092,300

2,350,000 1,650,000
2,252,300 1,601,900
2,252,300 1,601,900

(iti) Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of Equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each Share holder is eligible for one vote per share held, In
the event of liquidation, the Equity Shareholders arc cligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all the preferential amounts,

in propottion to their share holding.
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
(iv) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Amount {In Amgunt (In Amount (In
No. of Shares Thowsand) No. of Shares Thousand) No. of Shares Thousand)
Balance as at the beginning of the year 225,230,000 2,252,300 160,190,000 1,601,900 106,080,000 1,060,800
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.115 : 1 12,220,000 122,200
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.070 : | 8,280,000 82,800
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.065 : | 8,280,000 82,800
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.121 : 1 16,280,000 162,800
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.060 : 1 9,050,000 90,500
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.102 : 1 16,260,000 162,600
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.092 : 1 16,260,000 162,600
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratic 0.084 : 1 16,260,000 162,600
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.078 : 1 16,260,000 162,600
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.040 : 1 9,000,000 90,000
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0,040 : 1 9,215,000 92,150
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.075 : 1 18.215,000 182,150
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratio 0.070 : 1 18,215,000 182,150
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the mtio 0,065 : 1 18,215,000 182,150
Add: Rights Shares Issued in the ratic 0,037 : 1 11,140,000 111,400
Balance as at the end of the year 309,230,000 3,092,300 225,230 000 2,252,300 160,190,000 1,601,900
(v) Sharehelding Information
(8) Equity Shares held by Godrej Industries Ltd. - Holding Company (and its nominees) 3,092,300 2,252,300 1,601,900
309,230,000 (Previous Year 225,230,000; As on April 1, 2015 160,190,000) Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up
(b} Sharcholders holding more than 5% of Equity Shares
Godrej Industries Limited - the Holding Company 3,092,300 2,252,300 1,601,900
309,230,000 (Previcus Year 225,230,000; As on April 1, 2015 160,190,000} Equity Shares of 100% 100% 100%
Rs.10/- each fully paid up
Other Equity
Retained Earnings {3,043,842) (2,082.341) (1,459,074)
Financial Liabilities - Non-Cuzrront
{i) Borrowings
Term Loans
Secured
{a) Term Loan From a Bank (Refer Note No.15.1) 144 477 171,473 93,459
{(b) Term Loan From a Financial Institution (Refer Note No.15.2) 118,845 196,100 248,962
Total 263,322 367,573 342,431




Rs. in Thousand

Note
No.

Particulars

March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015

Note No.15,1 :

{a)

(&)

Nature of Security

Term loan from AXIS Bank & YES Bank is secured by hypothecation of moveable plant and machinery, fumiture, fixtures consisting of refrigeration and
interior work, both present and future of funded stores.

Terms of Repayment

1 Loan from Axls Bank
Carrying Interest rate ranging from
9.65% to 11.50% pa.

() Monthly installment of Rs.750,000/- up to
30.07.2020,

(i) Monthly installment of Rs.166,667/- up to
30.07.2020.

(iif) Monihly installment of Rs.583.333/- up to
30.07.2020.

(iv) Monthly installment of Rs.330,000/- up to
31.08.2020 and last installment of
Rs.319,000/-

1 Loan from YES Bank
Carrying Interest @ 10.30% pa

() Monthly installment of Rs.458,333/-
commencing from 2212 2017 up to
21.12.2022.

(ii) Monthly instaliment of Rs.375,000/-
commencing from 22.12.2017 up to
21.12.2022,

(iii) Monthly installment of Rs.833,333/-
commencing from 2212 3017 up to
21.12.2022.

Note No.15.2 :

(a)

®)

Nature of Security

March 31, 2017

Noa Current

20,250

4,500

15,750

8,977

Current

9,000

2,000

7.000

March 31, 2016

Non Current

29,250

6,500

22,750

12,973

Current

9.000

2,000

ApHi 1, 2015

Non Current

38.250

8,500

29,750

16,969

Current

6,750

1,500

5,250

2331

49477

71,473

21,996

93,463

15,831

26,125

21,375

47,500

1,375

1,125

2,500

27,500

22,500

50,000

95,000

5,000

100,000

Term, loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Ltd. is secured by hypothecation of the Fixed Assets and Current Assets of the funded stores & head office.

Terms of Repayment

1. Loan from Tata Capital Financial
Services Ltd.
Carrying Interest rate ranging from
10.35% to 9.70% pa.

(i} Monthly installment of Rs.1,666,667/- up to
10.10.2018.

(ii) Monthly installment of Rs.832,710/- vp to
10.10.2016. :

(i} Monthly installment of Rs.416.667/- up to
10.67:2019.

(iv) Monthly installment of Rs.583,333/- up to
10.11.2019,

(v) Monthly installment of Rs.833,333/- up to
10.01.2020,

(vi) Monthly installment of Rs.500,000/- up o
10.03.2020,

(vii) Monthly installment of Rs.641,667/- up to
10.03.2020,

{viii) Monthly installment of Rs.333,333/-up to
10.03.2020.

(ix} Monthly installment of Rs.333,333/-up to
10.03.2020,

(x) Monthly installment of Rs.500000/ up to
10.03.2020.

(xi}) Monthly installment of Rs.629,630/- up to
10.03.2020.

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Non Current Current Non Current Current Non Current Current
11,667 24,000 31,667 20,000 51,666 20,000
- 5,829 5,829 9.993
6,667 5,000 11,667 5,000 16,667 5,000
11,667 7,000 18,667 7,000 25,667 7,000
18,333 10,000 28,333 10,000 38,333 10,000
12,000 6,000 18,000 6,000 24,000 6,000
15,400 7.700 23,100 7.700 30,800 7,700
8,000 4,000 12,000 4,000 16,000 4,000
8,000 4,000 12,000 4,000 16,000 4,000
12,000 6,000 18,000 6,000 24,000 6,000
15,111 7.556 22 6665 7,556 -

118,845 77.256 196,100 83.085 248,962 79,693
263,322 104,252 367,573 105,081 342,431 95,524




Rs. in Thousand

Note Particulars March 31,2017 March 31,2016  April 1, 2015
No.
16  Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
For Unavailed Leave 4,113 1571 1,087
Total 4!] 13 1,571 1,087
17 Short Term Borrowings
Unsecured
Unsecured Shert Term Loan from Banks 100,000 -
Inter Corporate Deposit from Related Party (Refer Note No.17.1) - 52,000 52,000
Total 100,000 52,000 52,000
Note No.17.1 :
The Short Term Loan carries an interest rate of 9.25%.
In the Previous yeer, the Inter Corporate Deposit from Related Party was repayable on demand, carrying interest @ 10% o 9.4%. (April 1, 2015 10%)
18  Trade Payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 253,234 290,434 295,694
Total 253,234 290,434 295,694
Note No.18.1 :
Micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) bave been identified by the
Company on the basis of the information available with them and the auditors have relied on the same. Sundry creditors include total outstandin, g dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises amounting to Rs. NIL (Previous Year: Rs. NIL).
1% Other Financial Liabilities - Current
{a) Payable to Related Partics 507
(b} Current Maturities of Secured Long Term Debt (Refer Note Nos.15.1 & 15.2) 104,252 105,081 95,524
(c) Interest Accrued but Not Due on Borrowings 3,408 13,245 8,850
(d) Non Trade Payables 201,547 151,235 69,729
(¢) Security Deposit 384 334 -
(H Gramity 9,25% 1,997 1,569
(g} Leave Encashment 426 - -
Total 319,276 272‘.549 175,702
20  Other Current Liabilities
(8) Statutory Dues 21,937 12,667 10,096
(b) Other Liabilities 1,964 1451 520
Total 23,901 14,118 10,616
Note No.20.1 :
There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education & Protection Fund, in respect of matured but unclaimed Fixed Deposits / Loans
and any unclaimed interest.
21  Short Term Provisions
{aj Provision for Employee Benefits
For Unavailed Leave 352 187 156

Total 352 187 156




Rs, in Thousand

Note Particulars
No.

For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016

22 Revenue From Operations
(a)  Sale of Products
{b)  Other Operating Revenues
(i} Seconds Sales
(i) Others

Total

23 Other Income
{a) Inierest Income
(i) Fixed Deposits with a Bank
(i) Interest unwinded on Financial Instruments
(i) Others

{t) Dividend Ihcome

(¢)  Claims Received

{d)  Liabilities no longer required written back
(&)  Promotional Income

(f  Other Non Operating Income

Total

24 Purchases of Stock in Trade

25  Changes in Inventories of Stock in Trade
(2)  Stock at the Commencement of the Period

{b)  Less: Siock at the Close of the Period

Total

26 Employee Benefits Expense
{a)  Salaries and Wages
(b)  Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
()  Expenses on Employee Stock Based Payments
(d}  Staff Welfare Expenses

Total

27  Finance Costs
(2}  Interest Expense
(i} Bank Term Loans
(ii) Inter Corporate Deposits
(b)  Other Borrowing Costs

Total

28  Other Expenses
{(a) Consumption of Packing Materdals and Non-Trading Consumables

(b)  Rent
(c) Prepaid Rent Amortization of Financial Instruments
(d)  Repairs - Others

(e Imsurance

(f)  Rates and Taxes

{g) Provision for Doubtful Advances

(h)  Doubtful Advances written off

()  Labour Charges

()  Electricity Charges

(k)  Legal & Professional Fees

(I Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note No_28,1)
(m} Directors Sitting fees

(m)  Freight, Coolic and Cartage

(0)  Discount, Selling Expenses and Commission
(p})  Advertisement and Publicity

{@  Loss on Sale/ Write Off of Fixed Assets
(r)  Bad Debis Written Off

(s)  Loss by Theft

)  Local Conveyance

{u)  Stationery & Printing

(v)  Telephone & Fax

(w)  Computer Expenses

(x)  License Fees

(y)  Office Expenses

(z})  Bank Charges

(za)  Private Label Expenses
(zb)  Travelling Expenses
{zc)  Training/Confe E;

\4,(. @d) Miscellaneous Expenses

3,030,282 2,663,537
143 282
5,245 3,310
5,388 3,592
3,033,670 2,667,129
449 2,089
20,959 6,253
34,143 5,623
755,551 14,364
4 4
- 14
2,795 1,775
3,467 7,595
1,566 258
63,383 24,510
2,243,748 2,087,786
242,989 175,218
195,401 242,989
47,588 (67,771)
259,981 233,167
11,702 11,405
2,539 3,181
11,952 12,161
286,174 250,914
42,008 43,665
34,391 5214
- 1,234
76,399 50,113
27,024 19,644
301,534 230,644
20,275 6,909
28,158 27,511
3,397 6,614
117,394 5,695
6,909 9,636
28 .
124,622 115,561
108,704 110,261
144,277 34,814
2,691 1,911
1,410 1,363
42,933 57,036
4,291 4,420
138,721 114,670
121,154 10,490
74
: 600
7,812 7,004
3812 3,563
4,393 4,131
2,291 7014
5417 6,342
10,090 9,101
23,827
5,346
8,107
4,517
18,750




Rs, in Thousand

Note Partlculars For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Ended
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Note No.28.1 :
Auditor's Remuneration
(a)  For Audit 1,406 1,398
(b  For Audit Under Other Statutes 430 398
(¢)  For Taxation Matters 832 105
(d)  For Reimbursement of Expenses 10
{e)  For Other Services 23 -
Total 1,691 1,911
19  TEarnings Per Share
(a)  NetLoss After Tax (Rs. in thousand) (953,697) (622,335)
(t)  Number of Equity Shares QOuistanding at the beginning of the year 225,230,000 160,190,000
()  Number of Equity Shares Quisianding at the end of the year 309,230,000 225,230,000
Weighted average aumber of equity shares outstanding during the year 262,210,658 193,243,115
(©)
(d)  Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share (Rs.) (3.64) (3.23)
(&)  Nominal Value of Shares (Rs.) 10 10
30 Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company's contributions paid/payable to Regional Provident Fund at certain locations, Super Annuation Fund, Employees State Insurance Scheme, Bmployees Pension
Schemes, 1995 and other funds, are determined under the relevant approved schemes and/or statutes and are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service. There are no further obligations other than the contributions payable to the approved trusts/appropriate authoritics,

The Company has recognised Rs. 8,302 Thousand for the year ended March 31, 2017 {Previous year: Rs. 8,127 Thousand) towards Provident Fund contribution.

Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company's gratuity and leave encashment/long-term compensated absences schemes are defined benefit plans. The Company's lisbility for the defined benefit schemes i
actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method. The Company's net obligations in respect of such plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have eamed in return for their services and the current and prior periods that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the fair valne of the plan
asset is dedusted, Actyarial poins and losses are recoghised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In accordance with the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company has a defined benefit plan which provides for gratuity payments. The plan provides a lump
sum gratuity payment to eligible employees at retirement, resigration or termination of their employment. The amonnts are based on the respective employee's last drawn salary
and the years of employment with the Company.

The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at March 31, 2017:

{a) Change in Present Value of Obligation

(i) Present value of obligaticn as at the beginning of the year 4,993 3,674
(i} Interest Cost 403 294
(iify  Service Cost 1,316 972
(iv) Benefits Paid (2,301) {836)
[\ Actuarial {gain)/loss on cbligation 7,563 850
Present value of obligation, as at the end of the year 11,974 4,993
{t) Change in Plan Assets
(1] Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 2,995 2,075
(ii) Interest Income 242 166
(i)  Contributions 2,019 1,599
(iv) Benefits Paid (2,301) (836)
) Return on Plan Assets excluding interest income {241) [t)
Fair Value of plan assets, as at the end of the year 2,715 2,996
() A t Recognised in the Bal Sheet
(i) °  Present vatue of obligation, as at the end of the year (11,974) (4,993)
(i) Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 2,715 2,996
(i) Funded Status (Suwrplus/ (Deficit)) (9.259) {1.897}
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet (9,259) (1,997)
{d)  Net Interest Cost for Current Period
(i} Present value of obligation, as at the beginning of the year {4,993) 3,674
(ii) Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 2,996 {2,075)
(i) Net (Liability)/ Asset recognised as at the beginning (1,997) 1,599
(iv) Interest Cost 403 294
v) Interest Income {242) (166)
Net Interest cost for the current year 161 128
(e) Expenses gmised in the Stat of Profit or Loss for Current Period
1] Current Service Cost 1,316 972
(ii} Interest Cost 403 264
(iii) Expected retum on plan assets (242) {166}
Expenses Recophized 1477 1,100
()  Expenses recognised In the Other Comprehensive Income (QCI) for Current Period
(1] Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligation for the period 7,563 190
(if) Return on Plan Asscts, excluding interest income 241 7
(i)  Change in Asset Ceiling
Net (Income)/ Expense for the period recognized in OCT 7,804 897
Balance Sheet reconciliation
@) Opening Net Liability 1,997 1,559
(i) Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 1477 1100
(iif}  Expenses recognised in OCI 7,804 297
(iv) Employer's Conitribution (2,019) 1:599)
Net Liability/ {Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet 9,259 1,997

Category of Aszets
(i) Insurance Fund 2,714 2,995



Rs. in Th d
Note FParticulars For the Year For the Year
Nao. Ended Ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

(i)  Other Details

(i) Number of Active Members 355 407
(ii) Per month salary for Active Members 4,894 4,750
(iii) Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit Obligation 15
{iv) Average Future Sexvice (Years) 13 25
() Projected Benefit Obligation 11,974 4,593
{vi) Prescribed Contribution for next vear (12 Months) 4,894 3,313
(i)  Net Interest Cost for Next Year
(i) Present value of obligation, as at the end of the year 11,974 4,993
(i) Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year (2,715) {2,996)
(i)  Net (Liability)/ Asset recognised as af the end of the year 9259 1,997
(iv)  Imterest Cost 370 403
¥) Interest Income (197 242)
Net Interest cost for the next year 673 161
(k) Exy recognized fn the Stat: t of Profit or loss for next year
(i) Current Service Cost 3,351 1,316
(ii) Net Interest Cost 673 161
(iif) (Expected contributions by the employees)
Expenses Recognized 4,024 1477

() Maturity Analysis of Projected benefit obligation: From the Fund
Projected Benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

i 1st Following Year 2,866 79
(i 2nd Following Year 346 111
(iif) 3rd Following Year 385 139
(iv) 4th Following Year 519 178
) 5th Following Year 520 a5
(vi) Sum of Years 6 to 10 2,887 2,222
(m)  Sensitivity Analysis
6] Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 11,974 4,993
(i) Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (L111) (758)
(i) Dielta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 1348 943
(iv) Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 1,056 893
(¥) Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (953) (738)
{vi}  Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employes Tumover (953) 338
(vii)  Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (275) o0
(m)  Assumptions Used in Accounting for the Gratuity Plan of Past § Years
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
[01] Ditcount Rate 1.27% 8.07% 8.01% 9.30% 8.25%
{ify Salary escalation rate 10% 5% 1% 4%, 4.00%
(iid) Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.27% 8.07% 8.01% 9.30% 8.25%
Note:
(8}  The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, prometicn and other relevant factors, such as supply

and demand in the employment market.
(b)  The expected retum on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of the plan assets held, assessed risks of asset
management, historical results of the return on plan assets.

Other long-term employee benefits:

Compensated absences are payable to employees at the rate of daily salary for each day of accumulated leave on death or on resignation or upon retiretment. The charge towards
compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2017 based on actuarial valuation using the projected accrued benefit method is Rs. 4,891 Thousand (Previous Year :

Rs. 1,758 Thousand).

Terminal Benefits: All terminal benefits including voluntary retirement compensation are fully written off to the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Incentive Plans: The Company has a scheme of Performance Linked Variable Remuneration (PLVR) which is fully written off to the Statement of Profit & Loss. The Scheme
rewards its employecs based on Economic Value Addition (EVA), which is related to actual improvement made in EVA over the previous period when compared with expected
improvements.

31 Expenses on Employee Stock Based Payments
The Company has participated in the Godrej Industries Limited Employee Stock Grant Scheme 2011 and the Compensation Committee of the company has approved the grant of
stocks 10 a certain eligible employee in terms of the Scheme. The stock grants shall vest in the proportion of 1/3rd at the end of each year from the date on which the stock grants
are awarded for a period of 3 consecutive years. The exercise price is Re.1 per equity share as provided in the scheme. During the current financial year the company has
provided Rs.2,916 thousand, (Previous Year Rs.4,056 thousand, As at April 1 2015 Rs.2,909 thousand) for the aforesaid eligible employee.

32  Lease Taken by the Company
The Company’s leasing arrangemenis are in respect of operating leases for premises oceupied by the Company.

These leasing arrangements are cancellable, and are renewable on a periodic basis by mutual on Ity ptable terms, Escalation is applicable as per the terms and
conditions of the agreement.
(a)  The total of fisture minimum lease payments under cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:
(i) Not later than one year 189,803 250,722
(ii) Later than one year and not later than five years 518,722 920,869
{iii) Later than five years 88,207 53,295

796,822 1,233,886

(b)  Lease pzyments recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss for the year 279,284 247,554




Rs. in Thousand

Note Particulars For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
33  Accumulated Losses

35

The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption of a going concern basis notwithstanding substantial erosion in net worth and in view of further infusion of
additional funds from its promoters / shareholders. The Company has an accumulated (Deficity in Statement of Profit & Loss of Rs. 3,035,659 thousand (Previous year Rs.
2,081,962 thousand; As at April 1 2015 Rs.1,459,627 thousand ). The Company is expecting to generate faster growth in additional revenue through its online business and new
stores which is expected to improve its financial position in the short to medium term. In the exp jon of the firl ¢ of the above, the accounts have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

Contingent Liabilities
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debts
(1] Incotme tax demand pertaining to the financial year 2012-13 against which the Company has preferred appeals 843 843
(i) Service tax demand raised by Directorate General of Central Excise Intelligence (DGCEI) pertaining to the financial
year 2010-2011 to0 2014-2015 against which the Company has preferred appeals. 9,976
(i) VAT demands raised by Deputy Commissioner pertaining to the financial year 2010-2011 & 2012-2013 against
which the Company has preferred appeals. 27,761
(b) Guarantees
(i) Guarantees issued by banks 400 1,140
Balance Confirmation

Current Assets, Loans and Advances, Deposits and Trade Payables are subject io confirmation / reconciliation and consequential adjusiments, if any,
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Natures Basket Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a tinancial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans and advances.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade receivables and loans and advances.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer and the geography in which it
operates. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The Company monitors the outstanding balances at periodic intervals and accordingly makes specific provisions against such trade
receivables and loans & advances wherever required.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables is as follows:

Carrying amount Rs. in Thousand
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Current Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 35,631 32,066 22,968
The ageing of trade and other receivables is as follows
Rs, in Thousand
Mareh 31,2017 March 31,2016  April 1, 2015
Past due 1-30 days 18,060 18,226 14,405
Past due 31-90 days 7,497 3,608 2,342
Past due 91-180 days 2,107 4,302 2,195
> 180 days 7.968 5,930 4,026
Total 35,631 32,066 22,968




Natures Basket Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

iil. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cesh or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s
reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The amounts are gross end undiscounted, and include
estimated inferest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
Rs. In Thousand

Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2017 Carrying Total 0-6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years More than 5§
amount years
Nan current, non derivative financial ligbilities 263,321 263,321 - - 110,918 137,403 15,000
Current, non derivative financial Habilities 672,510 672,510 617,884 54,626 - - -
Total 935,831 935,831 617,884 54,626 110,918 137,403 15,000
Rs. In Thousand
Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2016 Carrying Total 0-6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years  More than §
amount years
Non current, non derivative financial liabilities 367,573 367,573 - - 104,252 228,321 35,000
Current, non derivative financlal liabilities 614,984 614,984 564,525 50,458 - - -
Total 982,557 982,557 564,525 50,458 104,252 228,321 35,000
Rs. In Thousand
Contractual cash flows
April 1, 2015 Carrying Total 0-6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years Morethan 5
amount years
Non current, non dertvative financial liabilities 342,431 342,431 - 97,525 239,421 5,485
Current, non derivative financial Liabilities 523,395 523,395 472,550 50,844 - - -
Total 865,826 865,826 472,550 50,844 97,525 239,421 5,485

Guarantees issued by the Company:
Guarantees issued by the Company are in favour of the Government Authorities. These amounts will be payable on default by the Company. As of the reporting
date, there have been no defaults and hence, the Company does not have any present obligation to third parties in relation to such guarantees.




Natures Basket Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

iv. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of chanpes in fair values
of fixed interest bearing financial assets or borrowings because of fluctuations in the interest rates, if such assets/borrowings are measured at fair

value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the fisture cash flows of floating interest bearing borrowings will fluctuate
because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is ag follows.

Rs. in Thousand
March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1, 2015

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets

Long term Loans and Advances

Security deposits 73,601 84,124 78,865
Loans & Advances to Employees 81 231 289
Other non-current flnancial assets

Deposits with Batik with maturity period more than 12 months 4,393 3,093 3,229
Deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 63 1,066 228
Short term loans and advances and Other current financial assets

Security deposits 26,963 18,221 15,097
Inter Corporate Deposits - 52,000 52,000
Interest Accrued but not due on Inter Corporate Deposits - 10,512 5773
Loans & Advances to Employees 240 676 701
Total 105,341 169,923 160,182
Financial liabilities

Long Term Borrowings

Term Loans from Bank & Financial Institutions 263,322 367,573 342,431
Short Term borrowings

Unsecured Short Term Loan from Banks 100,000 ]
Inter Corporate Deposits 52,000 52,000
Other Current Finanecial Liabilities

Current Maturities of Secured Long Term Debt 104,252 105,081 95,524
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3,408 13,245 8,850

Tatal 470,982 537,899 493,805

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any borrowings at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would
not affect profit or loss.

Fair value sensitlvity analysis for floating-rate instruments
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remaining constant.
Rs. in Thousand
Impact on Profit or loss
10¢bps 100bps 100 bps increase 100 bps decrease
increase decrease

March 31,2017

Term Loans from Banks & Financial Institutions (3,676) 3,676 {3,676) 3,676
Short Term Leans from Banks (1,000} 1,000 (1,000) 1,000
Cash flow sensitivity {net) (4,676) 4,676 4,676) 4,676
March 31, 2016

Term Loans from Banks & Financial Institutions (4,727) 4,727 (4,727) 4,727
Cash flow sensitivity {net) 4,727 4,727 @,727) 4,727

The risk estimates provided assume a change of 100 basis points interest rate for the interest rate benchmark as applicable to the
i3 ings summarised above. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been
based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the

‘jbt outstanding during the period.
)




Natures Basket Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

37 Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to mainiain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as
well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The primary
objective of the Company's Capital Management is to maximise shareholder value, The Company manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in the economic environment and the
requirements of the financial covenants, if any.

Rs, in Thousand
As at March As at March
31,2017 31, 2016
Total Liabilities 964,197 998,433
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 200,400 129,999
Adjusted net debt 763,798 868,433
Adjusted equity 48,458 169,959

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 16 5




NATURES BASKET LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

38 Net Worth Reconciliation

1. Net Worth Reconciliation as at March 31, 2016

Rs. ir Thousand

Particulars As per IGAAP As per Ind AS
Adjustments
1 Assets
(I} Non Current Assets
() Property Plant and Equipment 450,795 4,012 454,807
(b) Capital Work in Progress - -
(c) Goodwill 47,173 5,903 53,076
(d) Other Intangible Assets 16,820 . 16,820
(e) Financial Assets -
{i) Investments 25 518 543
{ii) Loans 122,092 (37,731 84,355
(iii) Other Financial Assets 4,815 . 4,815
(f) Other Non Current Assets 406 27,106 27,512
Total Non Current Assets 642,126 (198) 641,928
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 249,532 (6,543) 242,989
{b) Financial Assets .
(i) Trade Receivables 32,066 32,066
(ii} Cash And Cash Equivalents 129,999 - 129,999
(iti) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 1,066 - 1,066
(iv) Loans ) 71,369 472) 70,897
(v) Other Financial Assets 10,615 - 10,615
(¢ ) Current Taxes (Net) 6,402 ! 6,402
(d) Other Current Assets 23,905 8,524 32,429
Total Current Assets 524,954 1,509 526,463
Total Assety 1,167,080 1,311 1,168,391
II. Equity And Liabilities
(1) Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 2,252,300 2,252,300
(b) Other Equity {2,083,028) 687 (2,082,341)
Equity attributable to equity holders 169,272 687 169,959
Total Equity 169,272 687 169,959
(2) Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 367,573 - 367,573
(b} Long Term Provisions 1,571 1,571
Total Non Current Liabilities 369,144 - 369,144
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 52,000 - 52,000
(ii) Trade Payabies 290,434 - 290,434
(i} Other Current Financial Liabilitics 271,925 624 272,549
(b) Other Current Liabilities 14,118 - 14,118
(¢) Provisions 187 - 187
Total Current Liabilities 628,664 624 629,288
Total Equity And Liabilities 1,167,080 1,313 1,168,391




2, Net Worth Reconciliation as at April 1, 2015

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Asper IGAAP Ind AS As per Ind AS
Adjustments
I Assets
(1) Non Current Assets
(a) Property Plant and Equipment 364,418 364,418
(b) Capital Work in Progress 16,400 16,400
{c) Goodwill 53,076 - 53,076
(d) Other Intangible Assets 20,030 - 20,030
(¢) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 25 553 5718
(i) Loans 108,607 (29,453) 79,154
(i1i) Other Financial Assets 3,991 - 3,991
(f) Other Non Current Assets 14,240 21,913 36,153
Total Non Current Assets 580,787 6,987 573,800
(2} Current Assets
(a) Inventories 178,833 {3,615) 175,218
(b) Financial Assets -
(i) Trade Receivables 22,968 - 22,968
(ii) Cash And Cash Equivalents 138,157 138,157
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 228 228
{iv) Loans 71,954 (156) 71,798
(v) Other Financial Assets 6,435 6,435
(¢ ) Current Taxes (Net) 6,401 - 6,401
{d) Other Current Asssts 19,733 5,774 25,507
Total Corrent Assets 444,709 (2,803) 446,712
Total Assets 1,025,496 4,984 1,020£&
II. Equity And Liahilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 1,601,900 - 1,601,900
(b) Other Equity (1,456,176) (2,898) (1,459,074)
Equity attributable to equity holders 145,724 (2,898) 142,826
Total Equity 145,724 (2,898) 142,826
{(2) Non Current Liabilities
(a} Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 342.431 342 431
(b) Long Term Provisions 1,087 - 1,087
Total Non Current LiabHities 343,518 - 343,518
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 52,000 - 52,000
(ii) Trade Payables 295,694 . 295,694
(iii) Other Current Financial Liabilities 177,788 (2,086) 175,702
(b) Other Current Liabilities 10,616 - 10,616
(c) Provisions 156 - 156
Total Current Liabilities 536,254 (2,086) 534,168
Total Equity And Liabilities 1,025,496 4,984 1,020,512




Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carmying value of all its property, piant and
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the IGAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of

the property, plant and equipment.

Goodwill
Under Ind AS, Goodwill has to be tested for impairment and not amortised,

Financial Assets/ liabilities
Under Ind AS, financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition with the respective
instrament being subsequently measured at amortised cost with reference to the discount rate used for determining fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the transaction price and fair value has been appropriately adjusted

for the respective arrangement.

Inventory
Under Ind AS, consideration received for listing fees shall be a reduction from cost of sales and therefore a reduction of

inventory value.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with interest bearing loans and borrowings are recognised
upfront and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss for the period. Under Ind-AS, transaction costs are included in the
initial recognition of financial liability and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities which were offset under Indian GAAP but do not meet the offsetting criteria
have been shown gross under Ind AS.




NATURES BASKET LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

39 Profit Reconciliation

Profit & Loss Reconciliation for the Year Ended March 31, 2016 Rs. in Thousand
Particulars Asper Ind AS As per Ind AS
IGAAP  Adjustments

Revenue from QOperations 2,686,422 (19,293) 2,667,129
Other Income 18,759 5,751 24,510
Total Income 2,705,181 (13,542) 2,691,639
Expenses
(1) Purchases of Traded Goods 2,096,420 (8,635) 2,087,786
(2) (Increase)/ decrease in inventories of traded goods (70,699} 2,928 (67,771)
(3) Employee Benefits Expense 260,811 (897) 259,914
(4) Finance Costs 50,113 - 50,113
(5) Depreciation And Amortization Expense 104,906 (9,915) 94,991
(6) Other Expenses 890,090 (1,541) 888,550
Total Expenses 3,331,641 (18,059) 3,313,583
(Loss) Before Tax (626,460) 4,517 (621,944)
Tax Expense
{a) Deferred Tax - - -
(b} Prior Period Tax Adjustment (391) - (391)
(Loss) For The Period (626,851) 4,518 (622,333)

Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on post employment benefits (897) (897)
Income tax effect . -

Net gain/ (loss) on FVTOC! Equity Securities (35) (35)
Income tax effect - - -

Total other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or

loss in subsequent periods - (932) (932)
Total comprehensive income for the year (622,838) 429 (623,267)
Earnings per Share from continuing operation : (Basic/Diluted) in Rs. (3.24) (3.22)

Revenue from Operations:
Under Ind AS, revenue is required to be measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable net of expected sales
retumns, rebates, discounts etc.

Employee benefit:
Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS the Company recognised costs related to post-employment defined benefit plan on an
actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, actuarial gains and losses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, however in
Ind AS the actuarial gains and losses are recognised through Other Comprehensive Income.




40 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 08/11/2016 to 30/12/2016:

Other
Particulars SBN's Denomination Total
Notes
Closing Cash in Hand as on 08.11.2016 7,510,500 2,023,824 9,534,324
{+) Permitted Receipts - 91,599,639 91,599,639
(-) Permitted Payments - (16,516,329) (16,516,329)
(-} Amount Deposited in Banks _(7,400,500)  (71,299,088) {78,699,588)
Closing Cash in Hand as on 30,12.2016 110,000 5,808,045 5,918,045

Note: “Closing balance as on 30.12.2016 of SBN
been filed with the Police and for which the case

is in respect of recovery of cash stolen from a store for which an FIR has
is pending. Request has been made to RBI for deposit of the demonetised

currency. Pending approval from the RBI, the amount has been shown as cash in hand.”




Rs. in Thousand
Note Particulars For the Year For the Year
Nao. Ended Ended
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2016

41 Related Party Transactions
Related Party disclosures as required by Ind AS - 24, "Related Partly Disclosures”, are given below:

(2} Relationships:
()  Holding Company
1 Vora Soaps Limited (Ultimate Holding Company w.e.f, March 30, 2017)
2 Godrej & Boyee Mfg. Co. Ltd., (Uiltimate Holding Company up to March 29, 2017)
3 Godrej Industries Ltd., the Holding Company

(i)  Fellow Subsidiaries
A, Subsidiaries of Godrej Industries Lid.:
Godrej Agrovet Ltd. (GAVL)
Godrej Properties Ltd. (GPL)
Ensemble Holdings & Finance Ltd.
Godrej knternational Ltd. {incorporated in the Isle of Man)
Godrej International Trading & Investments Pte Ltd, (Incorporated in Singapore)
Godrej International Ltd. (a subsidiary incorporated in Labuan, Malaysiz on 12th February, 2015)

L= P

=

Subsidiaries of Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co Lid (G&B) (with G&B's direct equity holdings in excess of 50%);
Godrej Industries Ltd.

Godrej Infotech Lid,

Godrej (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (incorporated in Malaysia)

Godref (Singapors) Pte. Ltd. (incorporated in Singapare)

Veromatic International BV {incorporated in the Netherlands)

Busbar Systems (India) Ltd

Mercury Mf, Co. Ltd. {a subsidiary w.e.f. Ist October, 2013)

East View Estates Pvt. Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary w.e.f. 31st March, 2015)

First Rock Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd, (a wholly-owned subsidiary w.e.f. 31st March, 2015}
Miracletouch Developers Pvt, Lid. (a wholly-owned subsidiary w.e.f, 31st March, 2015)
Godrej Americas Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in the USA on 1st April, 2014)

R R - Y I N S

-

(i) Key Management Personnel

Ms. Avani Davda - Managing Director (w.e.f. May 5, 2016)

Mr. Mohit Khaitar- Managing Director (Till May 5, 2016)

Mr. Sumit Zaveri - Chicf Financial Officer (w.c.f. March 9, 2017)
Mr. Shekhar Iyer- Chief financial Officer (Till March 3, 2017)
Ms. Sushma Shukla- Company Secretary

Yok W e

{iv)  Relatives of Managing Director
Ms. Avani Davda - Managing Director (w.e.f. May 5, 2016}
1 Mr. Vighal Jagjivan Davda
2 Mr Ramesh Mobanlal Saglani
3 Ms. Kusum Ramesh Saglani
4 Mr. Param Vishal Davda

(v}  Individuals Exercising Control or Significant Influence (and thelir relatives)
Ms. Tanya Dubash
Mr. Arvind Darab Dubash
Mr. Adi Burjor Godrej
Mr. Aryaan Arvind Dubash

E
:
|

(viy  Noun Executive Directors
1 Mr. Sandeep Murthy
2 Mr. Sandeep Kumar Barasia

(vil)  Associate of a member of a Group Company
1 Godrsj One Premises Management Pvt Ltd

(viii)  Subsidiary of 8 member of a Group Company
1 Godvel Agrochem limited
2 Creamline Dairy Products Limited
3 Astec Lifesciences Limited

(lx)  Firm in which director or Manager or his relattve has control or exercises significant influence
Anamudi Real Estates LLP ( Ms. Tanya Dubash - Designated Partner )




(b) B. The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business :

Details relating to parties referred to in items (1) to (ix) above Rs, in Thousand
Holding Fellow Other Related
Nature of Transactions Company & Subsidiaries Parties
Ultimate Holding
Company
(i) (iv) (v) (v)
U] (i) (vil)(vil) & (ix)
(i) Issue of share capital 840,000
650,400
(i) Intercorporate deposits Taken 500,000
during the year
(ifi) mtercorporate deposits repaid 52,000 500,000
during the year
(iv) Interest expensc on 698 32,882
intercorporate deposits taken
5214 -
(v) Intercorporate deposits given 770,000
during the year
{vi) Intercorporete deposits 822,000
received back during the year
{vit) Interest Income on 33,925
Intercorporate deposits given
5.266
(viii) Qutstanding Intercorporate -
deposits taken
32,000
{ix) Outstanding Intercorporate
deposits Given
52,000
(x) Security Deposit Paid towards
lease rent
400
(xi) Security Deposit Receivable 600
604
(xii) Expenses/ Reimbursement 37,332 2,139 9,999
charged by other companies
25,889 607 3388
(xiv) Expenses charged to other -
companies
2,787
(xv) Purchase of Fixed Assets
43,458
(xvi) Sale of Traded Goods 1,710
726
(xvif} Outstanding receivables, net of 339 151
(payables)
(1,476) (10.831) 9,922
(xviii} Remuneration 24,521
21,139
(xix) Directors Sitting Fees 1,437

1,477




(¢) C. Significant Related Party Transactions :
Rs, in Thousand

Holding Fellow Other Related
Nature of Transactions Company Amount Subsidiaries Amount Parties Amount
(i) (iv) (v) (vi)
0} (if) (vi)(viil) & (ix)
(i) Issue of share capital Godrej Industries Lid 840,000
650,400
(i} Intercorporate deposits Taken Godrej Agrovet Creamline Dairy 500,000
during the year Lid. . Pyt Ld
Gil) Intercorporate deposits repaid Godrej Agrovet 52,000 Creamline Dairy 500,000
during the year Lid. Pvt. Ld
(iv) Interest expense on Godrej Agrovet 698 Creamline Dairy 32,882
intercorporate deposits taken Lid. Pwt. Ltd
5,214
(v) Intercorporate deposits given Astec Lifesciences 270,000
during the year Ltd.
Godvet Agrochem 500,000
Lid.
(vi}) Intercorporate deposits Astec Lifesciences 270,000
received back during the year Lid.
Godvet Agrochem 500,000
Lid.
Anamudi Real 52000
Estate LLP
(vii) Interest Income on Anamudi Real 705
intercorporate deposits given Estates LLP
5,266
Astec Lifesciences 12,386
Lid.
Godvet Agrochem 20,834
Lid.
{viti) Outstanding Intercorporate Godrej Agrovet
deposits taken Lid.
32,000
(ix) Outstanding Intercorporate Anamudi Real
deposits Given Estates LLP -
52,000

(x) Security Deposit Paid towards Godrej Industries Ltd,
lease rent
400

(xi) Security Deposit Receivable  Godrej Industries Litd. 600
600




42

Nature of Transactions

(xii) Expenses charged by other
companies

(xiv) Expenses charged to other
companies

O purchase of Fixed Assets

(x¥l) Sale of Traded Goods

(xvii) Qutstanding receivables,
net of (payables)

Holding
Company

U]

Godrej Industries Ltd.

Godrej & Boyce Mfg.

Co. Lid.

Godrej & Boyce Mff.

Co. Lid.

Godrej & Boyce Mfg,

Co. Ltd.

Godrej Industries Ltd.

Godrej & Boyce Mip.

Co. Ltd.

(xviii Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel

Short- term employee benefits
Share Based Payments
Termination Benefits

Total

(xix) Directors Sitting Fees

Note No.41.2 :

Figures for the previous year are in the second line in Ialics.

Comparative Accounts

Previous year figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to confirm with current year's classification.

Amount

March 31, 2017

Fellow
Subsidiaries

(i)
Godrej Agrovet
37,029 Lid.
24,722

303
1,167

2,787

43,458

Godrej Properties
Lid

Godrej Agrovet
381 Lid.
(1.476)

Godrej Properties
(42) Lid

March 31, 2016
22,750 18,950
877 1,395
893 794
24,521 21,139

Amount

Other Related
Parties
(i) (iv) (v) (vD)
(vii)(viii) & (ix)
Godrej One
2,139 Premises
607

1,710
726

= Anamudi Real
Estates LLP
(11,019
Godrej One

151 Premises
188

Sandeep Barasia

Sandeep Murthy

Arumugham
Mahendran

Amount

9,999
3388

10,512

(390)

J60
681

877

796




Annexure —D

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES,
2014.

A. Conservation of Energy

These provisions are Not Applicable the Company during the year under review.
B. Technology Absorption, adaptation and innevation

These provisions are Not Applicable the Company during the year under review.

C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

FY 16-17 FY 15-16

Rs. in Thousand Rs. in Thousand
Foreign Exchange Earnings Nil Nil
Foreign Ex'change outgo 2,445 2,245

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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